
THE BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY 
Professional & Vocational Licensing Division 

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
State of Hawaii 

 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

 
 
 
Date:   Tuesday, January 13, 2015 
 
Time:   9:00 a.m. 
 
Place:   Queen Liliuokalani Conference Room 

King Kalakaua Building 
335 Merchant Street, 1st Floor 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 

Present:  Neil Shimabukuro, Physical Therapist (“PT”), Chair 
Rachelle Iopa, PT, Vice Chair 
Russell Chung, Public Member 
Debra Kubota, PT  
Elizabeth McCreary, Public Member 
Alan Taniguchi, Executive Officer (“EO”)  
Rodney Tam, Deputy Attorney General (“DAG”)  
Jennifer Fong, Secretary 
 

Guest: Herbert Yee, Hawaii Chapter of the American Physical Therapy Association  
 
Agenda: The agenda for this meeting was filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor,  

as required by section 92-7(b), Hawaii Revised Statutes ("HRS"). 
 
1.  Call to Order: There being a quorum present, Chair Shimabukuro called the meeting to order at 

9:08 a.m. 
 

2.  Additions/   
     Additional 
     Distribution   
     to Agenda: None. 
 
3.  Approval of Chair Shimabukuro asked if there were any comments or concerns regarding the   
     Board Meeting board meeting minutes of the December 2, 2014 meeting.  

Minutes of the  
December 2,   Ms. McCreary noted that Vice Chair Iopa’s name appears twice on the list of  
2014 Meeting: individuals present at the meeting. 



Board of Physical Therapy  
Minutes of the January 13, 2015 Meeting 
Page 2 
 
 

 
 
Upon a motion by Ms. Kubota, seconded by Vice Chair Iopa, it was voted on 
and unanimously carried to approve the minutes of the December 2, 2014 
meeting as amended. 

 
4.  Executive    
     Officer’s Report: None. 
 
5.  New Business: None. 

 
6.  Unfinished a.  Rule Revisions – Title 16, Chapter 110, Hawaii Administrative Rules (“HAR”)-  
     Business Physical Therapist Assistant (“PTA”) Licensure – Update 

 
EO Taniguchi reported that the rules were sent to the Governor’s office in 
December for approval.  Once the Governor signs the rules, they will be sent to 
the Lieutenant Governor’s office for filing.  Ten days after filing, the rules will be 
final. 
 

b. Rule Revisions – Title 16, Chapter 110, HAR – Continued Competence Draft 
Language 
 
A copy of the statute language as well as the continued competence draft 
language was distributed to the board members. 
 
EO Taniguchi reminded the board that the rules are supposed to address what 
is not in the statute.   
 
EO Taniguchi reported that only one or two states use ProCert exclusively.  He 
feels that it would be restrictive for the Board to only accept ProCert.  He noted 
that in the draft language, he suggested that the Board accept courses 
approved by other state boards.  He has spoken to staff members of states that 
use ProCert and they seem happy with the program.   
 
Ms. Kubota asked how licensees would be informed of the continued 
competence requirements once the rules are approved. 
 
EO Taniguchi said that he is planning to mail a notice to the licensees.  He 
reported that he has also contacted the American Heart Association regarding 
the four units in life support for health care professionals that are required.  The 
representative he spoke to assured him that they could accommodate the 
number of licensees that would need to take the course and informed him that 
there was no comparable course.  EO Taniguchi noted that a four unit course 
would be over three hours.  He plans to contact the American Red Cross to 



Board of Physical Therapy  
Minutes of the January 13, 2015 Meeting 
Page 3 
 
 

confirm that they do not have a comparable course.  He suggested to Mr. Yee 
that HAPTA notify their members so that they can begin taking the required 
course. 
 
Ms. McCreary asked if licensees have to take the CPR course every two years 
and commented that she feels it is a bit excessive. 
 
EO Taniguchi said yes. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro noted that there is a similar requirement for other health 
care professions. 
 
DAG Tam noted that the statute states that continuing competence units shall 
be obtained in subjects related to either the professional practice of physical 
therapy or patient/client management.  He asked if ProCert approves courses 
in other subjects. 
 
EO Taniguchi said he is not aware of any other subjects that are approved.  He 
noted that Ms. Kubota is planning to go to an item-writing session for the 
jurisprudence exam and asked Ms. Kubota if she could inquire with the FSBPT. 
 
Ms. Kubota agreed. 
 
EO Taniguchi suggested that the Board consider retroactive approval of 
continued competence courses.  He noted that the rule process is lengthy and 
this would allow licensees to begin taking courses.  He said that course 
providers would need to inform the licensees that the courses are pending 
approval.  EO Taniguchi said he would work on draft language to address 
retroactive approval for review. 
 
Mr. Yee asked if the Board would be willing to evaluate courses for providers 
that do not want to go through the ProCert process.  He said that he believed 
that the FSBPT and the American Physical Therapy Association (“APTA”) are 
already mentioned in the statute as approved evaluators and HAPTA is willing 
to assist the Board with review. 
 
DAG Tam noted that the statute does not mention specific agencies recognized 
by the Board, however, the proposed rules language does mention course 
approval by the FSBPT or any other entity approved by the Board. 
 
Ms. Kubota expressed concern over the number of transient physical therapists 
who may take continued competence courses in another state. 
 
 



Board of Physical Therapy  
Minutes of the January 13, 2015 Meeting 
Page 4 
 
 

EO Taniguchi noted that the proposed language includes approval for courses 
approved by another jurisdiction’s physical therapy board or its equivalent. 
 
Ms. McCreary asked how the Board would determine compliance. 
 
EO Taniguchi stated that at the time of renewal, the licensee would have to 
sign an attestation that they completed the continuing competence 
requirements and the Board would randomly audit licensees.  He noted that the 
Board would need to decide what percentage of licensees would be audited.  
He said he believes it would be easiest on the board members if they only 
accept continued competence approved by ProCert, another state, APTA or 
HAPTA. 
 
DAG Tam reminded the Board that the statute requires that licensee shall keep 
their continued competency documents for a period of seven years after the 
course or activity concludes. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro noted that aPTitude allows licensees to put continued 
competence in their digital file and print out a report.   
 
Ms. McCreary asked what aPTitude is. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro stated that aPTitude is a resource created by the FSBPT 
for licensees to record their continued competence activities.  It allows reports 
to be generated so licensees can self monitor compliance.  
 
Mr. Yee said he has heard that it is a fairly rigorous process to get approval 
from ProCert. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro asked if the APTA’s process is less rigorous. 
 
Mr. Yee stated that the APTA’s approval process is not as transparent as the 
APTA only certifies their own courses and does not certify courses for other 
organizations. 
 
DAG Tam recommended that the Board make their rules as broad as possible. 
 
EO Taniguchi reminded the Board that if the rules are too specific, they will not 
be able to make any changes without going through the rules process. 
 
Ms. McCreary commented that she agreed that the rules should be as broad as 
possible as she feels it would be dangerous to get too specific. 
 
Mr. Yee stated that HAPTA has already received an inquiry from MedBridge, a 



Board of Physical Therapy  
Minutes of the January 13, 2015 Meeting 
Page 5 
 
 

company that provides courses for PTs as well as Occupational Therapists and 
Speech Pathology.  They would like carte blanche approval of their online 
courses. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro asked Ms. Kubota if she could request a list of credible 
agencies or providers from the FSBPT. 
 
Ms. Kubota agreed. 
 
Mr. Yee said that HAPTA would also provide the Board with whatever they 
have, however, he feels that it is not the courses that will be a problem but the 
other types of continued competence. 
 
EO Taniguchi agreed.  He noted that the FSBPT’s list of approved activities 
include items such as self study, residencies and research.  He asked if the 
Board would review these items. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro said that unless ProCert service includes these types of 
activities, the Board will have to do it. 
 
Ms. Kubota said she would ask the FSBPT about whether ProCert service 
includes activities and also, how other state boards handle these types of 
activities. 
 
Chair Shimabukuro stated that based on the FSBPT’s response, the Board 
may want to consider shortening the list of acceptable activities. 
 
DAG Tam noted that §461J-10.13(3) says “other competence related activities 
approved by the board or an agency recognized by the board” and suggested 
that the Board may want to further define “other competence related activities”. 
 

7.  Applications:  a.  Ratifications    
 

Upon a motion by Vice Chair Iopa, seconded by Ms. Kubota, it was voted on 
and unanimously carried to approve the attached ratification list. 
 

b. Applications 
 
Executive  At 10:14 a.m., it was moved by Ms. Kubota, seconded by Ms. McCreary, and  
Session: unanimously carried to move into Executive Session in accordance with HRS,            

92-5(a)(1) and (4), “To consider and evaluate personal information relating to 
individuals applying for professional or vocational licenses cited in section 26-9 or 
both;” and “To consult with the board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining 
to the board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities”. 



Board of Physical Therapy  
Minutes of the January 13, 2015 Meeting 
Page 6 
 
 

At 10:23 a.m., it was moved by Ms. Kubota, seconded by Vice Chair Iopa, and 
unanimously carried to move out of executive session.  
 

 Michael Anton 
Upon a motion by Chair Shimabukuro, seconded by Vice Chair Iopa, it was 
voted on to approve Mr. Anton’s application for PTA license with Chair 
Shimabukuro, Vice Chair Iopa, Mr. Chung and Ms. Kubota voting “yes” and 
Ms. McCreary voting “no”.  The motion passed. 
 

 Jerret Murray 
Upon a motion by Chair Shimabukuro, seconded by Ms. Kubota, it was 
voted on to approve Mr. Murray’s renewal application for PT license with 
Chair Shimabukuro, Mr. Chung, Ms. Kubota and Ms. McCreary voting “yes” 
and Vice Chair Iopa voting “no”.  The motion passed. 

 
9.  Next Meeting: Tuesday, March 10, 2015 

9:00 a.m. 
Queen Liliuokalani Conference Room 
King Kalakaua Building 
335 Merchant Street, First Floor 
Honolulu, Hawaii  96813 

 
9.  Adjournment: With no further business to discuss, Chair Shimabukuro adjourned the meeting at  

10:27 a.m. 
 

       Taken by: 
 
       /s/ Jennifer Fong  
             
       Jennifer Fong 

      Secretary 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
/s/ Alan Taniguchi  
      
Alan Taniguchi 
Executive Officer 
 
1/22/15 
 
[3] Minutes approved as is. 
[    ] Minutes approved with changes; see minutes of       . 
 



BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY 
 

RATIFICATION LIST  
Tuesday, January 13, 2015 

 
 

PHYSICAL THERAPIST 
 

PT 3911 ANDREA B FERREBEE 
PT 3912 KATE K WIENS 
PT 3913 BERNADETTE A STARSZAK 
PT 3914 JIM L SEAH 
PT 3915 KAIWEN CHENG 

PT 3916 MARIA L P ESPINA 
PT 3917 LEIGHA M STAFFORD 
PT 3918 NATHALIE V JAMILOSA 
PT 3919 KATHRYN A PORTILLA 
PT 3920 ANDRE L COUTO 

 
 
PHYSICAL THERAPIST ASSISTANT 
 
PTA 122 NANCY R JACKSON 
PTA 123 CHRIS A SIGOUIN 
PTA 124 TIFFANY W J KUGIYA 
PTA 125 IRISS S FERR 
PTA 126 JOSEPH S LABRADOR 
PTA 127 SANDY M V CHANG 
PTA 128 PHILIP G SMARS 
PTA 129 KRISTIN M NEAL 
PTA 130 JESSIE C DULLAGA 
PTA 131 MELANIE F LO 
PTA 132 JESSICA H ROBINS 
PTA 133 NORIKO F WHITE 
PTA 134 KAREN BUDD 
PTA 135 JULIE N HAMAMURA 
PTA 136 DAVID HODOSH 
PTA 137 ALFREDO BARON JR 
PTA 138 LORILYN C M MONTIZOR 
PTA 139 RANDALL FUJINAKA 
PTA 140 THERESA BRADY 
PTA 141 GLENDA D SHY 
PTA 142 MARY JANE M BARON 
PTA 143 SHERRI Y F SUR 
PTA 144 JOHN P GALINATO 
PTA 145 HELEN M VILLENA 
PTA 146 NICHOLE L SAPPE 
PTA 147 JODI M IKEHARA 
PTA 148 LAURA J HUBBS 
PTA 149 CYRUS H TAKENAKA 
PTA 150 LAURA L FILTER 
PTA 151 FAIRY A EDADES 
PTA 152 JOHN M ARTUSO 
PTA 153 ROCIO ANTU 

PTA 154 JAN N YAMAMOTO 
PTA 155 CHRISTINA A WONG 
PTA 156 MAI T NGUYEN 
PTA 157 TARA L GREER-KENT 
PTA 158 RYAN F LATTER 
PTA 159 CATALINA DUQUE 
PTA 160 ALIX E NELSON 
PTA 161 GARY H CRUNDWELL 
PTA 162 STEFAN H F HOLMA 
PTA 163 RICHARD W RITCHEY 
PTA 164 PAUL R RELUCIO 
PTA 165 JANELLE C WILEY 
PTA 166 REBECCA J PLAYFAIR 
PTA 167 FAY M HIBINO 
PTA 168 SIERRA C TERLAJE 
PTA 169 JEREMY YOUNG 
PTA 170 RICHARD C GALGAO 
PTA 171 NANCY A BIEGLER THEISMANN 
PTA 172 KAYLA K YALE 
PTA 173 GREGORY H RING 
PTA 174 CARLY J ARAKAWA 
PTA 175 FOLLY D MURDOCK 
PTA 176 JENNIFER A ANTONIO 
PTA 177 DONALD A RULL JR 
PTA 178 AMEDEO D EZZO-WHITE 
PTA 179 TRACY M UYEHARA 
PTA 180 POLA K KNIGHT 
PTA 181 MALIA C FREITAS 
PTA 182 BEV'AL M TANI 
PTA 183 LEANNE E SCHELLHORN 
PTA 184 EMILIA B ALTEZ 
PTA 185 CONSTANCE M RINALDI 

 



BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY 
RATIFICATION LIST 
Tuesday, January 13, 2015 
Page 2 
 
 
PHYSICAL THERAPIST ASSISTANT (continued from previous page) 
 
PTA 186 CHRISTINE D JAMES 
PTA 187 MATTHEW K CARLSON 
PTA 188 KIMBERLEY F PASCUAL 
PTA 189 NAOMI A MCGINN 
PTA 190 JORGE L TORRES 
PTA 191 JANET C DYSTE 
PTA 192 ERIN L WAGNER 
PTA 193 SHARLENE K ESPINOSA 
PTA 194 MEGAN D SHEETS 
PTA 195 OGILYN C RAMOS 
PTA 196 RYA JOY C BALIGAD 
PTA 197 DEBORAH E JOHNSON 
PTA 198 KRIS S TYLER 
PTA 199 MAYBELLE J MCKINNEY-MARTIN 
PTA 200 ANDREW SIA 
 
 


